

Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews

Prophylactic antibiotics to reduce morbidity and mortality in neonates with umbilical artery catheters (Review)

Inglis GDT, Jardine LA, Davies MW

Inglis GDT, Jardine LA, Davies MW. Prophylactic antibiotics to reduce morbidity and mortality in neonates with umbilical artery catheters. *Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews* 2007, Issue 4. Art. No.: CD004697. DOI: 10.1002/14651858.CD004697.pub3.

www.cochranelibrary.com

Prophylactic antibiotics to reduce morbidity and mortality in neonates with umbilical artery catheters (Review) Copyright © 2011 The Cochrane Collaboration. Published by John Wiley & Sons, Ltd. WILEY



Trusted evidence. Informed decisions. Better health.

[Intervention Review]

Prophylactic antibiotics to reduce morbidity and mortality in neonates with umbilical artery catheters

Garry DT Inglis¹, Luke A Jardine², Mark W Davies¹

¹Grantley Stable Neonatal Unit, Royal Brisbane and Women's Hospital, Department of Paediatrics & Child Health, The University of Queensland, Brisbane, Australia. ²Department of Neonatology, Mater Mother's Hospital, Mater Medical Research Institute, The University of Queensland, South Brisbane, Australia

Contact: Garry DT Inglis, Grantley Stable Neonatal Unit, Royal Brisbane and Women's Hospital, Department of Paediatrics & Child Health, The University of Queensland, Butterfield Street, Herston, Brisbane, Queensland, 4029, Australia. garry_inglis@health.qld.gov.au.

Editorial group: Cochrane Neonatal Group. **Publication status and date:** New search for studies and content updated (no change to conclusions), published in Issue 2, 2011.

Citation: Inglis GDT, Jardine LA, Davies MW. Prophylactic antibiotics to reduce morbidity and mortality in neonates with umbilical artery catheters. *Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews* 2007, Issue 4. Art. No.: CD004697. DOI: 10.1002/14651858.CD004697.pub3.

Copyright © 2011 The Cochrane Collaboration. Published by John Wiley & Sons, Ltd.

ABSTRACT

Background

Umbilical artery catheters are often used in unwell neonates. Infection related to the use of these catheters may cause significant morbidity and mortality. The use of prophylactic antibiotics has been advocated for all newborns with umbilical artery catheters in order to reduce the risk of colonisation and acquired infection. Countering this is the possibility that harm, such as the emergence of antibiotic resistant organisms, may outweigh benefit.

Objectives

The primary objective was to assess whether prophylactic antibiotics reduce mortality and morbidity in neonates with umbilical artery catheters. Two different policies regarding the prophylactic use of antibiotics in neonates with umbilical artery catheters were reviewed: 1) a policy of prophylactic antibiotics for the duration of catheterization (or other fixed duration of antibiotic treatment) versus placebo or no treatment among neonates with umbilical artery catheters; 2) a policy of continuing versus discontinuing prophylactic antibiotics among neonates with umbilical artery catheters who had been started on antibiotics at the time of catheterization but whose initial cultures to rule out sepsis are negative.

Search methods

MEDLINE (January 1950 to May 2007), CINAHL (1982 to May 2007), the Cochrane Central Register of Controlled Trials (CENTRAL, The Cochrane Library, Issue 2, 2007), the Cochrane Neonatal Group Specialised Register and reference lists of articles were searched. This search was updated in November 2010.

Selection criteria

Randomised and some non-randomised (i.e., quasi-randomised trials) controlled trials of adequate quality in which newborn infants with umbilical artery catheters are randomised to receive prophylactic antibiotics versus placebo or no treatment.

Data collection and analysis

Two reviewer authors independently assessed trial quality.



Main results

Two quasi-randomised trials have been included. However, given their poor quality, we have not pooled the results. There were no statistically significant differences in important outcomes in either study.

Authors' conclusions

There is insufficient evidence from randomised trials to support or refute the use of prophylactic antibiotics when umbilical artery catheters are inserted in newborn infants, and no evidence to support or refute continuing antibiotics once initial cultures rule out infection in newborn infants with umbilical artery catheters.

PLAIN LANGUAGE SUMMARY

Prophylactic antibiotics to reduce morbidity and mortality in neonates with umbilical artery catheters

There is not enough evidence from randomised trials to either support or refute the routine use of preventive antibiotics in newborn babies with umbilical artery catheters. Sick newborn babies occasionally require the insertion of an umbilical artery catheter [a special drip that goes into the artery in the umbilicus (belly button)]. This allows fluid and medicines to be given and blood tests to be taken. Some people believe that antibiotics should be given to all babies with umbilical artery catheters in order to reduce the chance of infection occurring. However, antibiotics can have unwanted effects. The reviewers found inadequate evidence from randomised trials to either support or refute the routine use of antibiotics for all babies with umbilical artery catheters.